
立法會 
Legislative Council 

 
LC Paper No. CB(1)312/13-14 

(These minutes have been 
cleared with the Chairman) 

 
Ref: CB1/PS/1/12 
 

Panel on Transport 
 

Subcommittee on Matters Relating to Railways 
 

Minutes of meeting on 
Friday, 25 October 2013, at 9:30 am 

in Conference Room 3 of the Legislative Council Complex 
 
 
Members present : Hon Michael TIEN Puk-sun, BBS, JP (Chairman) 

Hon CHAN Han-pan (Deputy Chairman) 
Hon CHAN Kam-lam, SBS, JP  
Hon WONG Kwok-hing, BBS, MH 
Hon Mrs Regina IP LAU Suk-yee, GBS, JP 
Hon LEUNG Kwok-hung 
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming 
Hon WU Chi-wai, MH 
Hon Gary FAN Kwok-wai 
Hon TANG Ka-piu      
Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, BBS, MH, JP  
Hon Christopher CHUNG Shu-kun, BBS, MH, JP 
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen 

 
 
Members absent : Hon LEE Cheuk-yan 
    Hon James TO Kun-sun 
    Hon Ronny TONG Ka-wah, SC 

Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP 
Dr Hon Elizabeth QUAT, JP 

 
 
Clerk in attendance : Ms Sophie LAU 

Chief Council Secretary (1)2 

 



- 2 - 
 
 

 

 
Staff in attendance : Miss Katherine CHAN  

Council Secretary (1)2 
 

  Ms Emily LIU 
  Legislative Assistant (1)2 
 
  Miss Ariel SHUM 
  Clerical Assistant (1)2 
  

 
Action 

I Election of Chairman (if necessary) 
 
 Mr Michael TIEN and Mr CHAN Han-pan were elected Chairman 
and Deputy Chairman of the Subcommittee on Matters Relating to Railways 
("the Subcommittee") respectively for the 2013-2014 session. 
 
 
II Schedule of meetings for the 2013-2014 session 
 
2. Members noted the proposed meeting schedule tabled at the meeting 
and agreed that the regular meetings of the Subcommittee for the 2013-2014 
session would be held about once every two months.  Special meetings 
would be held to discuss any urgent matters where necessary. 
 

(Post-meeting note: The meeting schedule of the Subcommittee was 
issued vide LC Paper No. CB(1)159/13-14 on 29 October 2013.) 

 
 
III Items for discussion at the next meeting 

(LC Paper No. CB(1)145/13-14(01) - List of outstanding items for 
discussion 

LC Paper No. CB(1)145/13-14(02) - List of follow-up actions 
LC Paper No. CB(1)37/13-14(01) - Letter dated 18 September 

2013 from Hon TANG Ka-piu 
on occupational safety in the 
construction sites of the 
Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Express Rail Link 
(Hong Kong Section) 



- 3 - 

 
 

Action 

LC Paper No. CB(1)37/13-14(02) - Letter dated 7 October 2013 
from Hon Gary FAN 
Kwok-wai on driving safety 
of MTR trains) 

 
3. The Subcommittee deliberated (Index of proceedings attached at 
Annex).  Members agreed to discuss the following items at the next regular 
meeting to be held on Friday, 22 November 2013, at 10:45 am: 
 

(a) retrofitting of automatic platform gates along the East Rail Line; 
and 

 
(b) update of the progress of the construction of the 

Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link (Hong 
Kong Section) ("XRL"). 

 
4. Members agreed to include the following items in the list of 
outstanding items for discussion: 
 

(a) progress of the 7 local enhancement schemes as set out in the 
Administration's Stage 2 Public Engagement Exercise of the 
Railway Development Strategy 2000; 

 
(b) progress of the South Island Line (East); and 
 
(c) over-crowdedness in MTR train compartments during peak 

hours. 
 

(Post-meeting note:  
 
1. The Administration's response to the letter dated 18 September 

2013 from Mr TANG Ka-piu on occupational safety in the 
construction sites of XRL (Hong Kong Section) was issued vide 
LC Paper No. CB(1)190/13-14 on 30 October 2013. 

 
2. The Administration's response to the letter dated 7 October 2013 

from Mr Gary FAN on driving safety of MTR trains was issued 
vide LC Paper No. CB(1)226/13-14 on 4 November 2013. 
 

3. The Subcommittee would refer the suggestion for conducting the 
Fourth Comprehensive Transport Study to the Panel on Transport 
for consideration.) 

 



- 4 - 

 
 

Action 

IV Any other business 
(LC Paper No. CB(1)127/13-14 - Paper on continuation of 

work of the Subcommittee on 
Matters Relating to Railways)

 
The 
Clerk 

5. The Subcommittee endorsed the paper and agreed that it be circulated 
to the Panel on Transport for consideration.  Subject to the approval of the 
Panel, the paper would be submitted to the House Committee for 
consideration. 
 
6. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 9:53 am. 
 
 
 
Council Business Division 1 
Legislative Council Secretariat 
18 November 2013 



 

Annex 
Panel on Transport 

 
Subcommittee on Matters Relating to Railways 

 
Proceedings of the meeting 

on Friday, 25 October 2013, at 9:30 am 
in Conference Room 3 of the Legislative Council Complex 

 

Time 
marker 

Speaker Subject(s) Action required

Agenda Item I – Election of Chairman (if necessary) 
000105 – 
000503 

Mr CHAN Kam-lam 
Mr Tony TSE 
Mr Christopher 

CHUNG 
Mr Michael TIEN 
Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok 
Mrs Regina IP 
Mr CHAN Han-pan 
 

Mr CHAN Kam-lam, Chairman of the 
Subcommittee on Matters Relating to Railways 
("the Subcommittee") for the 2012-2013 session 
presided over the election of the Chairman of the 
Subcommittee for the 2013-2014 session. 
 
Election of Chairman 
 
Mr Michael TIEN was nominated by Mr Tony TSE 
and the nomination was seconded by Mr 
Christopher CHUNG.  Mr Michael TIEN 
accepted the nomination.  There being no other 
nomination, Mr Michael TIEN was elected 
Chairman of the Subcommittee. 
 
Election of Deputy Chairman 
 
Mr CHAN Han-pan was nominated by Ir Dr LO 
Wai-kwok and the nomination was seconded by 
Mrs Regina IP.  Mr CHAN Han-pan accepted the 
nomination.  There being no other nomination, 
Mr CHAN Han-pan was elected Deputy Chairman 
of the Subcommittee. 
 

 

Agenda Item II – Schedule of meetings for the 2013-2014 session 
000504 – 
000830 

Chairman 
Mr CHAN Kam-lam 

Discussion of the proposed meeting schedule tabled 
at the meeting. 
 

 

Agenda Item III – Items for discussion at the next meeting 
000831 – 
001059 

Chairman 
Mr WONG 

Kwok-hing 

Mr WONG Kwok-hing suggested to include the 
following issues in the list of outstanding items for 
discussion ("the outstanding list"): 
 
(a) the MTR Corporation Limited ("MTRCL") 

should fulfil its corporate social responsibility 
by implementing the fare concession scheme for 
people with loss of one limb so that they could 
enjoy the concessionary fare of $2 per trip; and 
 

(b) the Administration should update the 
Subcommittee the progress of the local 
enhancement schemes for South Island Line 

 



- 2 - 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker Subject(s) Action required

(West) and Siu Sai Wan Line, as set out in the 
Administration's Stage 2 Public Engagement 
Exercise of the Review and Update of the 
Railway Development Strategy 2000 ("RDS 
2000"). 

 
The Chairman remarked that the proposed fare 
concession scheme offered to people with loss of 
one limb might be under the purview of the Panel 
on Welfare Services.  The Chairman advised that it 
could be put under the outstanding list first. 
 

001100 – 
001209 

Chairman 
Mr TANG Ka-piu 

Mr TANG Ka-piu raised concern about industrial 
accidents and occupational safety in the 
construction sites of the 
Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail 
Link (Hong Kong Section) ("XRL"), as detailed in 
his letter dated 18 September 2013 [LC Paper No. 
CB(1)37/13-14(01)].  He opined that the 
Subcommittee should urge the Administration and 
MTRCL to observe occupational safety whilst 
striving to complete the project on time.  In this 
connection, Mr TANG suggested putting this issue 
in the outstanding list. 
 
The Chairman responded that the Administration 
had proposed to discuss construction safety in 
railway projects in the 1st quarter of 2014 so that Mr 
TANG's concern could be addressed accordingly. 
 

 

001210 – 
001425 

Chairman 
Mr Christopher 

CHUNG 

Mr Christopher CHUNG suggested including the 
following issues in the outstanding list: 
 
(a) the Administration should update the 

Subcommittee the progress of the 7 local 
enhancement schemes as set out in the Stage 2 
Public Engagement Exercise of RDS 2000; and 
 

(b) MTRCL should further enhance the current 
facilities in MTR stations, like installation of 
more public toilets; provision of barrier-free 
access and facilities; and improvement in air 
conditioning systems. 

 
The Chairman remarked that: 
 
(a) the Administration planned to report on the 

progress of the 7 local enhancement schemes in 
the 2nd quarter of 2014 and this should cover the 
suggestions of Mr CHUNG and that of Mr 
WONG Kwok-hing; and 

 



- 3 - 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker Subject(s) Action required

(b) Mr CHUNG could provide further details in 
writing regarding his views on enhancement of 
station facilities to the Subcommittee, and Mr 
CHUNG agreed. 

 
001426 – 
001615 

Chairman 
Mr Gary FAN 

Mr Gary FAN expressed that: 
 
(a) MTRCL should respond to the Subcommittee 

his letter on driving safety of MTR trains; and 
 

(b) the Administration and MTRCL should update 
the Subcommittee the latest progress of the 
South Island Line (East) ("SIL(E)").  He also 
asked MTRCL to send the Subcommittee the 
report, which had been submitted to the 
Administration addressing the media and 
public's concerns on the train design for SIL(E). 

 
The Chairman said that the Administration agreed 
to provide a response to Mr FAN's letter in about 
two weeks' time.  The Subcommittee would then 
consider whether to discuss the issue in (a) above at 
the next regular meeting after receiving the 
Administration's reply. 
 

 

001616 – 
001735 

Chairman 
Mr Frankie YICK 

Mr Frankie YICK related the Taxi & P.L.B. 
Concern Group's concern about the impact of the 
railway developments on professional drivers' 
livelihood to the Subcommittee.  The 
Administration should therefore conduct the Fourth 
Comprehensive Transport Study soonest possible. 
 
The Chairman agreed with Mr YICK's proposal and 
said that the Administration should study the 
division of labour among the various transportation 
means now that the railway network was quite well 
developed. 
 

 

001736 – 
001911 

Chairman 
Mr WU Chi-wai 

Mr WU Chi-wai requested MTRCL to address the 
problem of over-crowdedness in MTR train 
compartments during peak hours by implementing 
necessary measures, like the launch of early bird 
discount to reduce the demand at peak hours.  He 
suggested to include this in the outstanding list. 
 
The Chairman suggested that MTRCL should set 
out clear and objective criteria for defining 
over-crowdedness in MTR train compartments. 
An objective definition would make discussions on 
improvement of railway service more meaningful. 
 

 



- 4 - 
 

Time 
marker 

Speaker Subject(s) Action required

001912 – 
002004 

Chairman 
Mr CHAN Kam-lam 

Mr CHAN Kam-lam opined that it would be more 
appropriate for the Panel on Transport, instead of 
the Subcommittee, to discuss how to better 
coordinate different public transportation modes 
with the development of different railway projects, 
which was mentioned by Mr Frankie YICK in 
earlier discussion.  Members agreed. 
 

 

002005 – 
002247 

Chairman 
Mr Frankie YICK 

The Chairman concluded that the following items 
should be discussed at the next regular meeting on 
22 November 2013: 
 
(a) retrofitting of automatic platform gates along 

the East Rail Line; 
 

(b) update of the progress of the construction of 
XRL; and 

 
(c) whether to discuss driving safety of MTR trains 

as mentioned in the aforesaid discussion would 
be decided after receiving the Administration's 
reply to Mr Gary FAN's letter. 

 
Mr Frankie YICK supplemented that the 
Administration should update the Subcommittee the 
latest progress of the study of co-location 
arrangement for XRL. 
 

 

Agenda Item IV – Any other business 
002248 – 
002352 

Chairman Members had no comment on the paper on 
continuation of work of the Subcommittee [LC 
Paper No. CB(1)127/13-14]. 
 

 

 
 
 
Council Business Division 1 
Legislative Council Secretariat 
18 November 2013 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.5
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice


